
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Tuesday, 15 September 2020.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 

 
 

Wednesday, 23 September 2020 at 10.00 am 
Virtual meeting - This meeting is being held remotely using Skype 

for Business 
 

 
Committee 
Members: 

 
Councillor Jacky Smith, Chairman of the Council (Chairman) 
Councillor Annie Mason, Cabinet Member for Communities (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Kelham Cooke, Councillor Barry Dobson, Councillor Anna Kelly, Councillor 
Adam Stokes and Councillor Paul Wood 

 
 

Agenda 

 Virtual Meeting - Joining Arrangements 
Councillors should access the meeting using the link in their calendar. 

Members of the press and public can gain access to the meeting by using the following link: 

Employment Committee - 23 September 2020 

If you are using a smartphone or tablet it may be necessary to download the Skype for Business app 

before you can enter the meeting; please allow yourself time to do this. If you are using a laptop or 

desktop computer, you should be able to access the meeting via your web browser. 

When you follow the link to the meeting you will enter a virtual lobby; you will be invited into the 

meeting from the lobby just before the meeting begins. Members of the public should not use the 

Chat function in Skype for Business. This is for use by Councillors, who will use it to indicate that 

they would like to speak. 

If you have any questions about how to join the meeting, please e-mail 

democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk. 

Employment 

Committee 

https://meet.southkesteven.gov.uk/d3/6SK841YF
mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 

 
1.   Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence  

   
2.   Disclosure of interests 

Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 

meeting 

 

   
3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 2020 (Pages 3 - 6) 

   
4.   Sickness Absence Statistics and Analysis 

Report of the Leader of the Council  
(Pages 7 - 15) 

   
5.   Gender Pay Gap 

Report of the Leader of the Council  
(Pages 17 - 30) 

   
6.   Apprenticeships at South Kesteven District Council 

Report of the Leader of the Council 
(Pages 31 - 36) 

   
7.   Employee Surveys 2020/21 

Report of the Leader of the Council 
(Pages 37 - 54) 

   
8.   Members Development Programme 

Report of the Leader of the Council 
(Pages 55 - 62) 

   
9.   Work programme (Pages 63 - 66) 

   
10.   Corporate Restructure 

Report of the Chief Executive 
(to follow) 

   
 This item is exempt under paragraphs 1 and 2, Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972 (as 

amended) because it contains information relating to individuals and is likely to reveal the identity of 

those individuals if disclosed. 

11.   Any other business, which the Chairman, by reason of special 
circumstances, decides is urgent 

 

   



 

Minutes 
Employment Committee 
Wednesday, 29 July 2020 

 
       

 
 

 
Committee members present 
  
Councillor Kelham Cooke 
Councillor Barry Dobson 
Councillor Anna Kelly 
Councillor Annie Mason (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Councillor Jacky Smith (Chairman) 
Councillor Adam Stokes 
Councillor Paul Wood 
 

Officers Other Members 
 
Chief Executive (Karen Braford)  
Strategic Director, Growth (Paul Thomas) 
Head of Organisational Development 
(Elaine Pepper)  
Director of Law and Governance (Shahin 
Ismail) 
Head of Finance (Alison Hall–Wright)  
Electoral Services Team Leader – taking 
minutes (Julie Edwards) 
Virtual meeting support officers 

Councillor Rosemary Trollope-Bellew 
 

 

 
Order of Agenda Items 
 
As both agenda items 4 and 5 were exempt, the Chairman confirmed her intention to 
move the work programme, listed at agenda item 6, to be considered after agenda 
item 3. 
 
The Chairman also advised there were no items to raise as matters of urgent 
business. 
 
44. Register of attendance, membership and apologies for absence 

Following a register of attendance, it was confirmed that all Members were 
present at the meeting. 

 
45. Disclosure of interests 

No interests were disclosed. 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



 
 

46. Minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2020 
A Member queried if the minutes of the previous meeting included the correct 
meeting date as a meeting had been scheduled to be held on 18 March 2020. It 
was confirmed that the date of the last meeting was recorded correctly as 18 
February 2020. The scheduled meeting of 18 March 2020 had been cancelled 
due to Covid-19.   
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 18 February 2020 were agreed as a correct 
record. 

 
47. Work programme 

The Chairman introduced the work programme and advised Members that due to 
the temporary suspension of the meetings earlier in the year, there had been 
amendments to the Committee’s work programme. The Chairman invited 
comments from Members on the updated work programme. 
 
The Leader of the Council confirmed that the work programme included a 
number of items discussed at the last meeting but expressed disappointment that 
there were also a number of items that did not include the date when they would 
be put to the Committee. The Leader asked the Chief Executive to provide an 
update on when these items would be put to the Committee. 
 
The Chief Executive confirmed that a framework was now in place in relation to 
Members’ training and this was being reviewed before being presented to the 
Committee.  The Leadership Performance and Director targets were linked to an 
emerging Corporate Plan and Members were assured that formal appraisals 
would be in place within the next six months. 
 
Action Point:  

 

• Work programme to be updated to include dates for consideration of 
Leadership Performance and Member Development plans. 

 
A Member asked if the Corporate Restructure would be included on the work 
programme as it would be returning to a future meeting of the Committee.  It was 
confirmed that, subject to approval, this would be added to the work programme. 

 
Action Point: 

 

• Work programme to be updated to include the Corporate Restructure in 
September. 

 
A Member asked a question regarding the Gender Pay Gap item which was 
listed to be reported to the Committee in March 2021.  It was confirmed that this 
was an annual report and as the March 2020 meeting had been cancelled due to 
Covid-19, this item would need to be included on the agenda for the next 
meeting.  

 

4



 
 

 
Action Point: 

 

• Gender Pay Gap to be included on the agenda for the September meeting 
of the Committee. 

 
A Member asked when the results of the staff survey would be reported back to 
the Committee. The Chief Executive advised that several staff surveys had been 
undertaken recently in relation to wellbeing.  She confirmed that details from the 
staff survey and wellbeing surveys would be presented to the next meeting of the 
Committee.   
 
Action Point: 

 

• A report covering the results of the staff survey and the wellbeing survey 
to be included on the agenda for the September meeting. 
 

Exclusion of the Press and Public 
 

It was proposed, seconded and AGREED: 
 
To exclude the press and public from the meeting during the discussion of 
the following items of business due to the likelihood that information that is 
exempt under paragraphs 1 and 2 of Schedule 12A of the Local 
Government Act 1972 (as amended) because they relate to individuals 
and it was likely that the identity of those individuals would be disclosed. 

 
The Committee entered closed session with effect from 14.17. 
 

48. Interim staffing arrangements 
The Strategic Director, Growth presented the exempt report on the appointment 
of an Interim Assistant Director of Housing. Members considered the report and 
were given the opportunity to ask questions.   
 
An exempt minute which was not for publication, records the debate that took 
place on this item of business. 
 
It was proposed, seconded and AGREED:  

 
(1) That the Employment Committee notes the current postholder would be 

leaving the organisation at the end of July 2020. 
 
(2) That the Employment Committee confirms the appointment of Chris Stratford 

to the position of Interim Assistant Director – Housing, with effect from 3 

August 2020 until such time as the Council Restructure process has been 
concluded and a permanent appointment made. 

 

5



 
 

49. Corporate Restructure 
The Chief Executive presented the exempt report on the proposed Corporate 
Restructure. 
 
Members were given the opportunity to ask questions and discuss the proposals.  
The Chief Executive responded to the questions raised.   
 
An exempt minute which was not for publication, records the debate that took 
place on this item of business. 
 
Following an in-depth review of the proposals it was proposed, seconded and 
AGREED:   
 

(1) That the Employment Committee approves, for consultation, the proposed 
Corporate Restructure of the Council as set out in the exempt report and the 
structural diagram attached as Appendix 2. 
 

(2) Recommends to Council that the statutory functions of the Interim Section 151 
Officer and the Interim Deputy Section 151 Officer are extended until 1 March 
2021. 
 

(3) That the amendments as outlined to the salary scales are approved for 
consultation, as detailed in the report. 
 

(4) Notes that a further report will be presented to the Employment Committee in 
September 2020 with the feedback and findings of the consultation and will 
consider any further proposed amendments to the Corporate Restructure. 
 

50. Close of meeting 
The meeting closed at 15.33. 

 
 

6



 

 

 

Employment Committee 
23 September 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Sickness absence update 

This report provides a review of absence statistics at South Kesteven District Council with 
commentary for the year ending 31 March 2020 and for the period 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020. 

 

 

Report Author 

Jane Jenkinson, Senior HR Officer 

 
 01476 406137 

  j.jenkinson@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Elaine Pepper, Head of Organisational Development 1 September 2020 

Approved by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director for Transformation 
and Change 

7 September 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 11 September 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. That the Employment Committee notes the absence statistics for South Kesteven 
District Council for the year ended 31 March 2020 and the period 1 April 2020 to 30 
June 2020 (Quarter 1) 

 

7

Agenda Item 4

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 This report provides sickness absence statistics for the organisation as a whole and a 

breakdown on both the causes of absence and individual departments’ performance. 

1.2 Due to the cancellation of the Employment Committee meeting in March 2020, the last 

sickness update provided to Employment Committee was in December 2019 and reported 

on Quarters 1 and 2 for 2019/2020.  This sickness absence update provides the sickness 

position for the whole year 2019/2020 and the first quarter of 2020/21. 

1.3 The supporting information used to produce this report is included in the Appendix to 

Sickness Absence Update. 

1.4 A sickness update will be provided every three months on the previous quarter’s statistics. 

Overall Sickness Absence rates. 

1.5 Sickness absence at South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) is measured using the 

standard calculation utilised by local authorities - the average number of days absent per 

person at the Council. The formula for this calculation is to divide the full-time equivalent 

sickness hours by the full-time equivalent headcount. 

1.6 The average number of days absent due to sickness per employee (both long- and short-

term absence) for the period April 2019 to March 2020 is 12 days.  For comparison the 

average number of days lost per employee due to sickness for the period April 2018 to 

March 2019 was 10. 

1.7 The CIPD Health and Wellbeing Report March 2020 indicates that the average number of 

days absent per employee in the public sector is 8 days. 

1.8 SKDC has a manual workforce which is a significant proportion of the total headcount 

(36%) and accounts for 53% of the total absence in the year.  Removing the Repairs and 

Street Care teams from the figures reduces the average number of days absent per 

employee to 8.7 days which is close to the national average. 

1.9 The average number of days absent due to sickness per employee (both long- and short-

term absence) for the first quarter of 2020/21 (1 April to 30 June 2020) is 1.5 days.  This is 

a reduction compared to the average number of days absent per quarter in 2019/2020 

(average of 3 days per employee per quarter). 

1.10 The estimated cost of absence for 2019/2020 based on a calculation of the total days 

absent multiplied by the average salary is £600,000. 

1.11 The estimated cost of absence for Q1 2020/21 based on the same calculation is £77,000. 

1.12 The Growth and Commercial and Operational directorates have the highest levels of 

absence.  This is typical due to them having the manual workforces of Repairs and Street 

Care. 

Short Term Absence 

1.13 The most common reasons for short term absence in 2019/20 were: cold and influenza 

(30%) stress, depression and mental health (15%) and stomach complaints (10%). 

1.14 For Quarter 1 of 2020/21 the most common reasons for short term absence were stress, 

depression and mental health (28%), other (22%), other musculo-skeletal 13%.  The use 

of ‘Other’ as a reason for absence appears to have increased and this is being removed 

8



 

 
 

as an option to be selected so that we have more specific information for reporting on the 

reasons for absence. 

Long Term Absence 

1.15 Long term absence for 2019/20 is 68% of total absence and short-term absence is 32%.   

1.16 Long term absence for Q1 2020/21 is 79% and short-term absence is 21%.  There were 

14 employees with long term absence during the period; 5 returned to work in the period, 

1 left employment and there are 4 employees who are in the process of leaving 

employment. 

1.17 The most common reasons for long term absence in 2019/20 were: stress, depression 

and mental health (36%), other musculo-skeletal (28%) and back and neck (22%). 

1.18 For Quarter 1 of 2020/21 the most common reasons for long term absence were stress, 

depression and mental health (34%), back and neck (26%), other 18%. 

1.19 Repairs, Street Care and Housing account for 72% of all absence in Quarter 1 2020/21.  

Repairs and Street Care typically account for a high proportion of absence due to having a 

predominantly manual workforce.  The high level of absence in Housing is due to some 

employees on long term absence with serious illnesses. 

1.20 At the end of Q1 there were 13 employees on long term absence.  One of these has since 

left the organisation with two others leaving shortly.  The medical incapability process is 

being followed with two other employees and this should have a positive impact on the 

level of long-term absence. 

Return to Work Interviews 

1.21 The rate of completed return to work interviews for 2019/2020 is 88%.   

1.22 The rate of completed return to work interviews for Q1 2020/2021 is 95%. The actual 

number of return to work interviews not completed in the period is 4. These have been 

followed up with managers who have been reminded about the importance of carrying out 

return to work interviews.   

1.23 An HR dashboard has now been developed which provides up to date information on 

sickness absence including completed return to work interviews. This information will be 

used in discussions with managers at HR business partner meetings and will address and 

challenge any issues of non-completion.  

Mental Health Related Absence  

1.24 Mental health related absence continues to be one of the highest reasons for both short- 

and long-term absence. It currently accounts for 28% of short-term absence and 34% of 

long-term absence. 

1.25 The March 2020 CIPD report indicates the majority of organisations are making little 

headway in reducing workplace stress, which remains a particular issue in public sector 

organisations, many of which have experienced budget, resource and staff reductions 

over the last few years. 

1.26 In terms of time lost due to mental health related absence there has been a 25% reduction 

in Q1 2020/2021 compared to the same period last year. 

1.27 Support for mental health related absence is available through an employee assistance 

programme, a number of trained mental health first aiders and stress management 

9



 

 
 

training for staff.  Wellness action plans are also used to help an employee and their 

manager identify triggers for poor mental health and agree what support can be put in 

place. 

1.28 There has been an increased focus on mental wellbeing during Covid-19 and the Human 

Resources team have provided information and sources of support available on a regular 

basis through weekly Wellbeing communications. 

1.29 Mental Health First Aiders (MHFAs) have provided information and feedback on the use of 

their services. The majority have seen approximately 3 members of staff each in their 

official capacity. In the main these are self-referrals but there have been some instances 

where line managers have contacted the MHFAs to raise concerns.   

1.30 Feedback has been positive, both from a user and MHFA point view, indicating that the 

MHFAs and other initiatives help to raise awareness and encourage people to talk and to 

take positive steps to better their mental health. 

Next Steps 

1.31 Human Resources will continue to support line managers in reducing both short-term and 

long-term absences.  Line management training which covered absence management 

was provided in early 2020 and future new managers will receive training in both absence 

management and carrying out return to work interviews. 

1.32 The Organisation Development and Change team have developed an automated 

dashboard of absence information which enables Human Resources to monitor and 

analyse absence statistics on a regular basis. This information will feed into HR business 

partner meetings with managers resulting in actions and updates in respect of absence 

case management. 

1.33 HR business partner meetings will encourage an increased focus on return to work 

interviews to improve the current completion rate.  

1.34 Human Resources will encourage managers to use Wellness Action Plans with employees 

who they identify as having poor mental health and for all mental health related absence.  

This will enable a more proactive approach and should reduce absence levels. 

1.35 Information gathered in the recent mental health survey indicates that not all staff are 

aware of who the mental health first aiders are and what their role is. Human Resources 

will include details about the mental health first aiders in their response to staff on the 

findings of the survey.   

2 Financial Implications  

2.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

3 Legal and Governance Implications  

3.1 The Committee may wish to see sickness absence reporting and monitoring through a 

suite of employment based indicators, to align with the new Corporate Plan objective of 

being a high performing Council 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

 

10



 

 
 

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

4.1 Equality and safeguarding implications are considered in HR Policy and the HR 

Handbook. There are no additional equality and safeguarding implications resulting from 

this report. 

5 Risk and Mitigation 

5.1 There are no risks arising from this report. 

6 Community Safety Implications  

6.1 There are no community safety implications relating to this report. 

7 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

7.1 The recommendations in this report have no carbon impact. 

8 Other Implications (where significant)  

8.1 There are no other implications relating to this report. 

9 Appendices 

9.1 Appendix to Sickness Absence Update 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable 

Previously Considered by: Employment 
Committee 

5 June 2019 

Final Decision date   Not applicable 

 

11



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix to Sickness Absence Update  
Report to Employment Committee – 23 September 2020 

 

Causes of Sickness Absence 

Table 1a: Absence by Category (Short Term) Q1 to Q4 2019/2020 

 

Absence Description % of absence against total 
absence 

Cold, influenza 30% 

Stress-Depression-Mental Health 15% 

Stomach/liver/kidney/digestion 10% 

Back & neck 8% 

Other musculo-skeletal 7% 

 

Table 1b: Absence by Category (Short Term) Q1 2020/21 

 

Absence Description % of absence against total 
absence 

Stress-Depression-Mental Health 28% 

Other 22% 

Other musculo-skeletal 13% 

Stomach/liver/kidney/digestion 6% 

 
 

Table 2a: Absence by Category (Long Term) Q1 to Q4 2019/2020 

 

Absence Description % of absence against long 
term absence total 

Stress-Depression-Mental Health 36% 

Other musculo-skeletal 28% 

Back & neck 22% 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

13

Appendix 1



Table 2b: Absence by Category (Long Term) Q1 2020/21 

 

Absence Description % of absence against long 
term absence total 

Stress-Depression-Mental Health 34% 

Back and neck 26% 

Other 18% 

Other musculo-skeletal 10% 

 
 

Directorate and departmental breakdown 

Table 3a: Time Lost by Directorate Q1 to Q4 2019/2020 

 

Directorate % of absence 
against absence 

total 

Ave. absence 
days per 
employee 

Commercial and Operational 42% 13 

Growth  40% 3 

Resources 2% 14 

Transformation and Change 16% 13 

 

Table 3b: Time Lost by Directorate Q1 2020/21 

 

Directorate % of absence 
against absence 

total 

Ave. absence 
days per 
employee 

Commercial and Operational 27% 1.1 

Resources 9% 1.3 

Growth 61% 2.7 

Transformation and Change 3% 0.4 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



Table 4a: Time Lost by Department Q1 to Q4 2019/2020 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Table 4b: Time Lost by Department Q1 2020/21 

 
 

Department  % of absence against 

absence total 

Ave. absence 

days per 

employee 

Communications 3% 4.7 

Repairs 27% 4.1 

Benefits 7% 4.1 

Housing 20% 3.9 

Property 3% 3.3 

Improvements 7% 2.8 

Development Management 4% 1.7 

Street Care 25% 1.5 

Licensing 1% 1.2 

 

Department  % of absence against 
absence total 

Ave. absence 
days per 
employee 

Repairs 20% 24.7 

Customer  Services 6% 20.8 

ICT 4% 20.0 

Housing 13% 18.5 

Licensing 1% 17.8 

Street Care 33% 15.8 

Improvements 5% 14.8 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Employment Committee 
23 September 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Gender Pay Gap 

This report provides Employment Committee with the Gender Pay Gap position for 2018/19 and 
seeks feedback from the Committee in relation to improving gender equality. 

 
 

Report Author 

Elaine Pepper, Head of Organisational Development 

 
01476 406132 

 e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director for Transformation 
and Change 

2 September 2020 

Approved by: Paul Thomas, Strategic Director for Growth 3 September 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 10 September 2020 

 

Recommendations to the decision makers 

1. That the Employment Committee notes the outcomes of the 2018/2019 Gender Pay 
Gap Reporting. 

2. That the Employment Committee reviews and provides feedback on the action plan for 
addressing the issues and improving gender equality within South Kesteven District 
Council. 

17

Agenda Item 5

mailto:e.pepper@southkesteven.gov.uk


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Under the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017, the Council 
is required by law to publish an annual gender pay gap report.  The information contained 
within this report is for the snapshot date of 31 March 2019 (as per the regulations). 

1.2 The gender pay gap shows the difference between the average (mean or median) 
earnings of men and women.  This is expressed as a percentage of men’s earnings, for 
example in the format: ‘women earn 15% less than men’.  If used to its full potential, 
gender pay gap reporting is a valuable tool for assessing levels of equality in the 
workplace; female and male participation; and how effectively talent is being maximised. 

1.3 The gender pay gap varies by occupation, age group and even work patterns.  The tables 
below capture the snapshot data for the last three years, since the requirement for 
publishing the data began in 2017. A series of summary tables are shown as Appendix 1. 

1.4 Summary of Data for South Kesteven District Council 2019 

 

• The mean gender pay gap  

 
4.44% 

 

• The median gender pay gap 

 
9.95% 

 

• The mean gender bonus gap 

 
N/A 

 

• The median gender bonus gap 

 
N/A 

 

• The proportion of male employees in South Kesteven 
District Council receiving a bonus is 

 
N/A 

 

• And the proportion of female employees receiving a 
bonus is 

 
N/A 

 

1.5   In terms of hourly rates this equates to: 

 Male Female Difference 

Standard mean 
hourly rate 

 
£12.96 

 
£12.39 

 
£0.57 

Standard median 
hourly rate 

 
£12.05 

 
£10.85 

 
£1.20 

 

1.6 Pay Quartiles by Gender 

Pay quartiles by gender 

Band Males Females Description 

A 62% 38% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 
places them in the lowest quartile (lowest paid) 

B 43% 57% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 
places them above the lower quartile 

C 55% 45% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 
places them below the upper quartile 

D 51% 49% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 
places them in the top quartile (highest paid) 

 

18



 

 
 

1.7 Summary of Data for South Kesteven District Council 2018 

 

• The mean gender pay gap  

 
6.2% 

 

• The median gender pay gap 

 
11.7% 

 

• The mean gender bonus gap 

 
N/A 

 

• The median gender bonus gap 

 
N/A 

 

• The proportion of male employees in South Kesteven 
District Council receiving a bonus is 

 
N/A 

 

• And the proportion of female employees receiving a 
bonus is 

 
N/A 

 

1.8     In terms of hourly rates this equates to: 

 Male Female Difference 

Standard mean 
hourly rate 

 
£12.41 

 
£11.64 

 
£0.77 

Standard median 
hourly rate 

 
£10.64 

 
£9.39 

 
£1.25 

 

1.9    Pay Quartiles by Gender 

Pay quartiles by gender 

Band Males Females Description 

A 31% 69% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 
places them in the lowest quartile (lowest paid) 

B 57% 43% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 
places them above the lower quartile 

C 68% 32% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 
places them below the upper quartile 

D 54% 46% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 
places them in the top quartile (highest paid) 

  

1.10  Summary of Data for South Kesteven District Council 2017 

 

• The mean gender pay gap  

 
3.7% 

 

• The median gender pay gap 

 
20% 

 

• The mean gender bonus gap 

 
N/A 

 

• The median gender bonus gap 

 
N/A 

 

• The proportion of male employees in South Kesteven 
District Council receiving a bonus is 

 
N/A 

  

19



 

 
 

• And the proportion of female employees receiving a 
bonus is 

N/A 

 

1.11 In terms of hourly rates this equates to: 

 Male Female Difference 

Standard mean 
hourly rate 

 
£12.11 

 
£11.66 

 
£0.45 

Standard median 
hourly rate 

 
£11.69 

 
£9.29 

 
£2.40 

 

1.12 Pay Quartiles by Gender 

Pay quartiles by gender 

Band Males Females Description 

A 59% 41% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 
places them in the lowest quartile (lowest paid) 

B 37% 63% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 
places them above the lower quartile 

C 54% 46% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 
places them below the upper quartile 

D 55% 45% Includes all employees whose standard hourly rate 
places them in the top quartile (highest paid) 

 

1.13 The mean is defined as the average of the figures and is calculated by adding up all the 
figures and dividing by the number of staff.  The median is defined as the salary that lies at 
the midpoint and is calculated by ordering all salaries from highest to lowest and the 
median is the central figure.  The quartile information is calculated by listing all salaries from 
highest to lowest and then splitting that information into four equal quarters to determine the 
percentage of male/female employees in each quartile. 

1.14 All the figures set out above have been calculated using the standard methodologies used 
in the Equality Act 2010 (Gender Pay Gap Information) Regulations 2017. 

 Under the law, men and women must receive equal pay for: 

• The same or broadly similar work 

• Work rated as equivalent under a job evaluation scheme or 

• Work of equal value. 

1.15 The Council is committed to the principle of equal opportunities and equal treatment for all 
employees, and it has a clear policy of paying employees equally for the same or equivalent 
work, regardless of their sex (or any other protected characteristic as set out in the Equality 
Act 2010).  As such, it: 

• Carries out pay and benefits audits at regular intervals 

• Evaluates job roles and pay grades as necessary to ensure a fair structure. 

1.16 The Council is therefore confident that its gender pay gap does not result from paying men 
and women differently for the same or equivalent work. 

1.17 Rather, the gender pay gap is the result of the roles in which men and women work within 
the organisation and the salaries that these roles attract.  However, there is a need to look 
beyond the data to identify any issues, influences and practices that determine our gender 
pay gap. 

20



 

 
 

1.18 Small changes can make a difference. The fact that we already have established processes 
and polices that contribute to the equality of the organisation, officers already have access 
to flexible working and that we already offer shared parental leave must not be overlooked.  
Therefore, an action plan was produced to complement, build and strengthen initiatives 
already in place. An updated plan is attached to this report at Appendix 2. 

1.19 The Gender Pay Report for South Kesteven District Council was published on the 
government website by 31 March 2020. 

2 Financial Implications  

2.1 There are no specific financial implications arising from this report. The financial 
considerations of the Council’s employment arrangements are included in the budget 
framework. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

3 Legal and Governance Implications  

3.1 The report sets out the data that must by law be published. The Council has reduced the 
gender pay gap from 2018 to 2019. The anomalies between the pay for men and women 
could benefit from further analysis as the median pay figures suggest that overall men 
occupy higher paid roles than women in the workforce. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

4.1 As covered in the report, delivery of the Gender Pay Gap Action Plan will build on the work 
already undertaken and will enhance the reputation of the Council as an Equal 
Opportunities Employer. It is recognised that the Gender Pay Gap report focusses on the 
protected characteristic of gender and the action plan considers equality implications in 
detail. 

5 Risk and Mitigation 

5.1 Not Applicable 

6 Community Safety Implications  

6.1 The are no community safety implications relating to this report. 

7 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 
Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

7.1 The recommendations in this report have no carbon impact.  

8 Appendices 

8.1 Appendix 1 - Summary Tables 

8.2 Appendix 2 - Gender Pay Gap Action Plan 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable 

Previously Considered by: Employment 
Committee 

17 February 2020 

Final Decision date   23 September 2020 

 

21



 

 
 

 

Appendix 1 : Pay Gap Comparison Tables – 2017-2019 
 
 
Summary Data 2017 - 2019 
 

 2019 2018 2017 

 

• The mean gender pay gap  

 
4.44% 

 
6.2% 

 
3.7% 

 

• The median gender pay gap 

 
9.95% 

 
11.7% 

 
20% 

 

• The mean gender bonus gap 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 

• The median gender bonus gap 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 

• The proportion of male employees in 
South Kesteven District Council 
receiving a bonus is 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 

• And the proportion of female 
employees receiving a bonus is 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
N/A 

 
 
Hourly Rates 2017 - 2019 
 

 2019 2018 2017 

 

M
a

le
 

F
e

m
a

le
 

D
if

fe
re

n
c

e
 

M
a

le
 

F
e

m
a

le
 

D
if

fe
re

n
c

e
 

M
a

le
 

F
e

m
a

le
 

D
if

fe
re

n
c

e
 

Standard 
mean 
hourly 
rate 

 
£12.96 

 
£12.39 

 
£0.57 

 
£12.41 

 
£11.64 

 
£0.77 

 
£12.11 

 
£11.66 

 
£0.45 

Standard 
median 
hourly 
rate 

 
£12.05 

 
£10.85 

 
£1.20 

 
£10.64 

 
£9.39 

 
£1.25 

 
£11.69 

 
£9.29 

 
£2.40 

 

22



 

 
 

 

Pay Quartiles by Gender 2017 - 2019 
 

 Pay quartiles by gender 

 2019 2018 2017 Description 

Band Males Females Males Females  Males Females  

A 62% 38% 31% 69% 59% 41% Includes all employees whose 
standard hourly rate places them 
in the lowest quartile (lowest 
paid) 

B 43% 57% 57% 43% 37% 63% Includes all employees whose 
standard hourly rate places them 
above the lower quartile 

C 55% 45% 68% 32% 54% 46% Includes all employees whose 
standard hourly rate place them 
below the upper quartile 

D 51% 49% 54% 46% 55% 45% Includes all employees whose 
standard hourly rate places them 
in the top quartile (highest paid) 

 

23



This page is intentionally left blank



Gender Pay Gap Action Plan 

Attract – Retain – Develop  

Attract                                                                                                                                                                                         Recruitment and Selection 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          

Action Purpose Detail To commence 
from 

Outcome 

Assign a GPG Lead 
from within the 
Management Team 
to lead on the 
delivery of the 
action plan.  
 
 
Responsibility for 
delivery – GPG Lead 

To lead on the 
implementation of 
the GPG Action 
Plan.  

The Head of Organisational Development will be responsible 
for and lead on the GPG Action Plan.  A Focus and Delivery 
Group will be formed to help support the delivery of the plan 
across the organisation. 
 
The Chief Executive at this time asked for interested 
parties and met with staff and although feedback from 
staff was given there was very little appetite from staff to 
form a focus group.  The work of this plan has therefore 
been embedded into the overall HR Work Plan. 
 
Following the publication of the 2019 Gender Pay Gap, 
the GPG Lead will encourage a small team of individuals 
to come together to work on key initiatives that form part 
of this action plan.   
 

Focus group to 
be formed April 
2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
April 2020 

Gender Pay Gap 
will be reduced and 
gender equality will 
be improved within 
the organisation. 

Research GPG 
Reports/Action 
Plans from other 
organisations 
 
Responsibility for 
delivery – GPG Lead 
with GPG Focus 
Group 
 
 
 

Compare the results 
of SKDC to other 
similar 
organisations, 
benchmarking with 
others will help 
define if SKDC 
gender pay gap is 
cause for concern. 
 
 
 

• Compare the results of SKDC with other organisations 

• Gain ideas and best practice from the action planning of 
others. 

 
A review of the last 3 years of data will take place on the 
1st April 2020, previous data has shown that similar 
district councils have similar issues in terms of services 
provided etc. 
 
Unfortunately due to other priorities, Covid19, Lockdown 
and focusing on staff wellbeing this work has yet to be 
developed. 

April 2020 
 
 
 
Work to begin 
April 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Benchmarking 
information will be 
used to address 
any SKDC issues. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

25

A
ppendix 2



Job Adverts/Job 
Descriptions 
 
 
Responsibility for 
delivery – GPG Lead 
with GPG Focus 
Group 
 

To ensure we 
encourage 
applicants who 
cannot work full-time 
or within standard 
“normal” office hours 
or settings. 

Advertise our commitment to workplace flexibility in all 
recruitment processes highlighting opportunities for variations 
on full-time working hours. 
 
Agile and home working opportunities to suit the needs of the 
individual and the workplace should be promoted in line with 
the key values and behaviours set out in our Corporate 
Strategy. 
 
Ensure capability requirements are clear and that all noted 
essential skills are necessary and not just desirable allowing 
for technical skills to be learnt after recruitment.  Research 
shows that women are unlikely to apply for a position unless 
they meet 100% of the requirements, whilst men will apply if 
they meet 60% of the requirements. 
 
All new Job Descriptions include flexibility in terms of 
working hours but also with regard to our values and 
behaviours.  We will capture this further when we hold 
further Line Managers’ workshops. We are also 
undertaking a review of recruitment and selection 
processes and this will be included.  However, we still 
need to continue to develop and educate line managers. 
 

April 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 
updating of Job 
Descriptions 
2020 

Enhances the 
Authority’s 
reputation for 
inclusivity. 

Introduce a 
programme to 
recruit returners to 
employment 
 
Responsibility for 
delivery – GPG Lead 
with GPG Focus 
Group 
 

To provide 
opportunities to 
women that have 
been out of 
employment for an 
extended period of 
time 

Returners are people who have taken a career break of a 
year or more for caring or other reasons and who are either 
not currently employed or are working in roles for which they 
are over-qualified. 
 
Developing a returner programme will give the Authority 
access to a pool of experienced people who either already 
have skills we need or who are easily able to acquire them.  
This may require the re-evaluation of some roles to address 
the viability of offering part-time/flexible opportunities. 
 
 

June 2020 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Provide a 
programme to 
support, encourage 
and develop 
returners and 
enhance the 
reputation of the 
Council 

26



The HR Team are currently undertaking a review of the 
processes and procedures in relation to Recruitment and 
Selection, ensuring that we promote all the initiates, 
policy and procedure that we currently have within the 
Council.  As part of this review the GPG focus group will 
be asked to assist with this key project. 
 

To begin April 
2020 

Introduce diverse 
recruitment panels 
 
Responsibility for 
delivery – GPG Lead 
with GPG Focus 
Group 

To reduce any 
potential of bias in 
the evaluation of 
candidates during 
the interview 
process. 

All recruitment panels should have a least one “trained” 
member on the panel of 3 people and male/female 
representation where possible, 
 
Line management training took place in February/March 
2020, and future training will be organised as and when 
required, as informed by HR Business Partner meetings. 
 

April 2019 
 
 
 
Feb 2020/ 
ongoing 

Enhance the 
Authority’s 
reputation for 
inclusivity  

27



 

Retain                                                                                                                                                                                                      Existing Workforce 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                            
Action Purpose Detail To commence from Outcome 

Introduce 
Performance Self 
Assessments 
 
 
Responsibility for 
delivery 
GDP Lead and GDP 
Focus Group 
 

To provide data on 
barriers to 
progression 

There is some evidence that women underestimate their 
abilities or are more conservative in their assessment of 
their abilities than men are. 
 
Self-assessment allows people to review their own 
performance and abilities.  This performance review would 
form part of the appraisal process and include reviews by 
the individual’s manager and peers to give a rounded view.  
As staff are encouraged more and more to work 
autonomously we must ensure they have the confidence to 
fulfil their role 
 
We are currently developing a new Performance 
Management process, which will introduce a 
“performance model” as part of the “check in” 
process, so all staff will have the opportunity to 
discuss their strengths and any development 
opportunities with their immediate Line Manager.  
(Training will be provided to all Line Managers on 
performance management). 

June 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Begins April 
2020/ongoing/slight 
delay due to the OD 
Team focus being 
on Covid19 
Incident 
Team/Room 

Staff better 
engaged in the 
process of 
reviewing 
performance and 
setting job and 
career goals as 
they acquire an 
accurate view of 
how the work they 
do impacts on the 
workplace 

To provide an 
understanding of an 
individual’s 
perception of their 
own abilities 
(strengths and 
weaknesses) 

To identify areas in 
which people excel 
and could pass on 
their skills, 
knowledge etc to 
others 

To identify 
development needs 
 

Flexible Working for 
all 
 
 
 
Responsibility for 
delivery 
GPG Lead and GDP 
Focus Group 
 
 
 
 

To enable a means 
of flexible working 
across SKDC that is 
open to all (subject 
to actual business 
need) 

Whilst there are some areas where flexible working is 
(because of business need) restricted, barriers to a flexible 
approach need to be removed. A corporate approach which 
encourages both women and men to work flexibly will 
ensure the programme is administered in an equitable 
manner. Senior managers should role model working 
flexibly. 
 
Flexible working is already in place and has been for a 
number of years. Ongoing action is however required to 
further promote flexible working across the Authority to help 
dispel the impression (of some) that presence equals worth 
within the organisation. 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SKDC is seen as a 
fair and flexible 
employer that 
values and 
empowers its staff.  
Creates a positive 
employer brand for 
future job 
applicants and 
helps retain staff 
whose personal 
circumstances 
have changed 

28



 
 

 
As an organisation we continue to promote flexibility 
and flexible working, in the past, staff have commented 
on inconsistency in some areas, although we 
appreciate that not all areas can have the same 
flexibility due to service provision, we continue to 
discuss with managers, opportunities and ways to 
enable flexibility and will be undertaking a staff survey 
in October to gain further feedback from staff on the 
subject. 
 

March 2020 and 
ongoing 

Promote the 
opportunity for 
shared parental 
leave 
 
Responsibility for 
delivery 
HR in collaboration 
with the 
Communications 
Team 
 

To reduce the 
gender pay gap that 
may be 
experienced by 
women who return 
to the work 
environment after 
having children 

Research shows that the gender pay gap is significantly 
greater in some organisations after women have children.  
This gap can be reduced through advocating shared 
parental leave. 
 
Shared parental leave policy already in place. Ongoing 
action is required to further promote the opportunity of 
shared parental leave 
 
Promotion of Parental Leave has taken place and we 
continue to do so, however, in general the uptake is 
low. 
 

Ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Ongoing 

Improvement in the 
diversity and skill 
within the 
workplace and a 
reduction in the 
gender pay gap 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29



 

Develop                                                                                                                                                                                       Training and Development  
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                      

Action Purpose Detail To commence 
from 

Outcomes 

First Time Line 
Managers 
Programme 
 
Responsibility for 
delivery 
Organisational 
Development and 
Change, working with 
HR 
 

To provide training 
to staff in leadership 
positions and to 
those who aspire to 
be in leadership 
positions 
 

The First Time Line Managers Programme has been 
developed and will be delivered in “bite size” sessions 
throughout April/May.  Topics available to those on this 
programme will include: 

• Recruitment and Selection 

• Absence management 

• Performance Management 

• Communications 

• Disciplinary/Redundancy 

• Flexible Working 

• Itrent (HR System) 
 
The next workshops for first time managers/refreshers 
for current managers took place in February/March 2020. 

April 2019 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Begins Feb 2020 
and ongoing 

Appropriately 
trained officers who 
understand and are 
able to utilise 
management tools 
available 

Introduce mandatory 
recruitment and 
selection training  
 
Responsibility for 
delivery - GPG Lead 
with GPG Focus 
Group 
 
 

To ensure 
consistency in the 
recruitment and 
selection of potential 
employees. To 
ensure equality 
throughout the 
process 

Learning and development opportunity for all staff involved in 
the recruitment and selection process.  Training to include 
modules on: 
 

• Recruitment and Selection Policy and Procedures 

• Attracting/Branding/Targeting 

• Interview techniques 

• Unconscious Bias (First Impressions) awareness. 
 

Update – training on recruitment and selection has taken 
place and we delivered 3 sessions in Feb and March as 
part of the Line Management Development Workshops.  
Business Partner meetings with Senior HR Officers will 
take place during 2020 and any further learning and 
development requirements will be picked up at these 
meetings. 

 
Summer 2019 
and ongoing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Summer 2020 
and ongoing 

Trained recruitment 
panels able to 
utilise a number of 
techniques to 
identify the 
strengths of 
candidates. 

 

30



 

 

 

Employment Committee 
23 September 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

 

Apprenticeships at South Kesteven District Council 

This report considers the role of apprenticeships at South Kesteven District Council.  

 

Report Author 

Neil Moverley, Senior HR Officer 

 
 01476 406135 

  n.moverley@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Elaine Pepper, Head of Organisation Development 4 September 2020 

Approved by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director for Transformation 
and Change 

8 September 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 10 September 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

It is requested that the Employment Committee: 

1. Endorses the approach to diversify the type of apprenticeships at the Council and the 
greater application of apprenticeships into workforce planning. 

2. Provides feedback into the future planning of apprenticeships. 

3. Updates the work programme to consider the apprenticeship proposal in more detail. 

31

Agenda Item 6

mailto:n.moverley@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 There are four principal benefits and purposes to the role of apprenticeships at South 

Kesteven District Council (SKDC). 

i) Supporting the Learning and Development budget to increase the capability of 

existing staff. 

ii) To be an integral part of workforce planning and to provide succession planning 

for difficult to recruit to areas. 

iii) Increasing the capacity of teams to meet objectives and 

iv) To build relationships with residents and educational establishments to highlight 

local government careers in South Kesteven. 

1.2 Recent government policy on apprenticeships impacts upon SKDC’s use of 

apprenticeships in two ways: 

i) Public sector organisations with over 250 employees have been set a target of 

2.3% of their headcount (not full-time equivalents) to be undertaking 

apprenticeships. 

This equates to an annual target of 13.5 apprentices at SKDC. 

ii) 0.5% of the monthly wage bill minus an annual allowance of £15,000 is 

administered by HMRC and returned to SKDC to spend on formal 

apprenticeship training. 

This equates to approximately £52,000 per annum.  This funding can only be 

spent on apprentice training with approved providers, not salaries, learning 

materials or travel. 

1.3 In addition to the salaries paid to apprentices as employees, each apprenticeship has a 

different cost, which is funded from the Apprenticeship Levy. Depending on the level and 

duration of the qualification this ranges from a 12-month course at Level 2 (GCSE 

equivalent) costing £2.5k to a 6 year post graduate qualification costing £27k. 

Where we have come from. 

1.4 SKDC has supported 14 apprentices in 2017/18 and 16 apprentices in 2018/19.  

1.5 Prior to 2017 the majority of apprenticeships were for Customer Service and Business 

Administration at level 2 and 3 (the equivalent of GCSE and A level respectively) and were 

largely employed in Customer Service and Revenues and Benefits.  This is except for 3 

trade apprenticeships at Repairs and Improvements (Bricklaying and for formal Electrician 

training.) 

1.6 Most of the training for apprenticeships was provided by Grantham College, with whom we 

have built an excellent working relationship. 

Apprenticeships at SKDC in 2019/20. 

1.7 12 apprenticeships commenced at the council in 2019/20. 

1.8 The HR and Organisation Development and Change teams have worked with managers 

through business partner meetings and service reviews to identify relevant 

apprenticeships in response to the Employee Survey and ongoing workforce succession 

planning.  

32



 

 
 

1.9 We are utilising apprenticeships to support career development and to train existing staff 

to gain qualifications and experience in roles that are hard to recruit to. 

1.10 The following apprenticeships were started by employees at SKDC in 2019/20: 

i) Senior Leader Masters Degree Apprenticeship 

ii) Chartered Management Degree Apprenticeship 

iii) Chartered Town Planning Degree Apprenticeship (x2) 

iv) Accountancy / Taxation Professional Degree Apprenticeship 

v) Team Leader ILM level 3 diploma    (x3) 

vi) Advanced Business Administration Level 3  (x1) 

vii) Large Goods Vehicle Driver Level 2   (x3) 

1.11 We have expanded the range of the providers engaged to deliver apprenticeships, 

building relationships with: Lincoln University, Sheffield Hallam University, Boston College, 

private sector providers and the Open University, whilst maintaining an excellent 

relationship with Grantham College. 

1.12 During 2019/20 SKDC had 4 apprenticeships that are multi-year courses that commenced 

prior to this year.  These were in the topics of; Advanced IT, Installation and Maintenance 

Electrician and Team Leader ILM (x2).  This means that across 2019/20 SKDC had 16 

employees carrying out apprenticeships. 

Case Study: Organisation Development and Change Officer 

1.13 The officer joined SKDC on a one-year Business Administration Level 2 Apprenticeship as 

a Project and Performance Apprentice on 6 March 2017. He proved himself within the role 

and at the conclusion of the apprenticeship his contract was extended to March 2019. 

1.14 As part of the restructure of the Project and Performance Management team into the 

Organisation Development and Change Team he was offered a full-time role with the 

opportunity to take a Team Leader ILM 3 apprenticeship to continue his development. 

1.15 He seized this opportunity and has used his training to change his role from supporting to 

leading projects.  To supplement his apprenticeship, learning he has also undertaken 

Lean Six Sigma and Agile training qualifications. 

1.16 He continues to grow in his role and his feedback on the apprenticeship training has not 

only helped shape the delivery of the ILM Level 3 apprenticeship but he is also an integral 

part of a project team that is shaping how apprenticeships are developed and delivered at 

SKDC. 

Where we are going – 2020 and beyond 

1.17 In 2020/21 Covid-19 has had an impact on the delivery of apprenticeships. Where 

possible our existing apprentices have moved from face to face learning to online 

provision and support.  The HR team have a regular correspondence with East Midlands 

Councils and the National Apprenticeship Service to ensure we stay on top of 

developments. 

1.18 In 2020/21 we have recruited 2 apprentices at starter level in Housing and IT, the IT 

apprentices has since gained a full time role in Environmental Health and the intention is 

that this IT apprenticeship post will be re-recruited to.   

33



 

 
 

1.19 2 existing employees in junior posts have successfully applied for apprenticeships at 

degree level in Development Management and Finance as part of their career 

development and are due to commence in September 2020.  2 further employees have 

commenced courses at the Open University in order to build up their education credits to 

enable them to attend degree apprenticeships next year. 

1.20 A further 3 apprenticeships are being discussed with managers, 2 as recruitment options 

and 1 as a continuous professional development option.  

1.21 A project group led by the HR and Organisation Development and Change team is 

developing a proposal relating to an apprenticeship programme that will be presented as 

part of the future work programme for Employment Committee. 

1.22 The SKDC apprenticeship programme will: 

• Cover an apprentice’s first steps into employment 

• Develop future leaders 

• Provide Continuous Professional Development (CPD) opportunities across the 
organisation.   

• Build a strong talent pipeline throughout the organisation 

• Create a peer support network that embed the core values of the corporate strategy.  

1.23 To summarise; the proposal could see four apprenticeship pathways being created: 

i) Strategic Leadership. 

Developing strategic leadership at the council.  In conjunction with Learning and 

Development courses and coaching / mentoring opportunities to provide a 

consistent and challenging approach to leading the organisation. 

ii) Operational Leadership. 

Supporting new line managers and operational departmental managers to 

develop the key skills needed to lead and to manage change.   

In conjunction with the internal First Line Management training and the external 

course Developing a Managerial Mindset to provide a consistent and strong 

approach to line management and project leadership. 

iii) Technical Qualifications. 

A range of qualifications to provide new and existing staff with the skills they 

and the organisation need both now and in the future. 

These qualifications range from bricklaying to town planning degrees and IT to 

accountancy.  These apprenticeships will play a key part in developing 

workforce and succession planning at SKDC. 

iv) Entry to the organisation. 

Apprenticeships will be used as an avenue for top talent in the local community 

to gain a foot in the door at the council, with avenues through business 

administration, customer services and trade apprenticeships being available.  

1.24 Each of the pathways will have a range of apprenticeships at different levels of 

qualification.  A number of apprenticeships have been researched and training providers 

34



 

 
 

have been initially approached to discuss different delivery options and to assess their 

capabilities.   

1.25 This approach will ensure that SKDC works towards both utilising the Apprenticeship Levy 

efficiently and in a way that benefits the organisation in meeting the corporate strategy and 

ensures we meet or exceed the target of 13.5 apprentices per year. 

2 Financial Implications  

2.1 The council is on target to spend the Apprenticeship Levy within the two year deadline.  If 

commitments were to exceed the available funding, central government would fund 90% 

of the additional costs with the remaining 10% met from existing budgets for 

apprenticeships which commenced prior to 1 April 2019 and for apprenticeships which 

commenced from 1 April 2019 central government would fund 95% and the council 5%. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Alison Hall-Wright, Head of Finance 

3 Legal and Governance Implications  

3.1 There are no legal implications arising from this report. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

4 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

4.1 There are two elements to consider regarding equality:  

i) To ensure that all staff are given access to apprenticeships on a transparent 

and equitable basis. 

ii) That external applicant recruitment to apprenticeships is carried out in line 

with SKDC’s recruitment processes. 

5 Risk and Mitigation 

5.1 SKDC needs to ensure that the Apprenticeship Levy is utilised to ensure a mix of 

supporting the continuous professional development of existing staff alongside recruitment 

of new employees into a variety of roles at different levels.  This will be managed through 

regular meetings with managers to develop opportunities and workforce / succession 

planning and management reviews.    

5.2 If the Apprenticeship Levy is unspent after two years, the funding is returned to Her 

Majesty’s Revenue and Customs.  In order to mitigate this SKDC is looking at a mixture of 

apprenticeships of varying costs that support the corporate strategy and the future needs 

of the organisation. 

6 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a ‘climate emergency’? 

6.1 An increasing number of apprenticeships can now be delivered electronically. This 

reduces travel requirements and therefore the carbon footprint of those undertaking 

training and development.  

7 Other Implications (where significant)  

7.1 Not Applicable 

 

 

35



 

 
 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable 

Previously Considered by: Employment 
Committee 

4 September 2019 

Final Decision date   23 September 2020 

 

36



 

 

 

Employment 
Committee 
23 September 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 
  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

Employee Surveys 20/21 

This report reviews the delivery, outcomes and actions relating to two internal employee 
surveys during 2020 and provides an overview of the forthcoming all staff employee survey.  

 

Report Author 

Neil Moverley, Senior HR Officer 

 
01476 406135 

 n.moverley@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Elaine Pepper, Head of Organisation Development 7 September 2020 

Approved by: Lee Sirdifield, Strategic Director for Transformation 
and Change 

9 September 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 10 September 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

That the Employment Committee: 

 i) notes the delivery and outcome of two internal employee pulse surveys carried out in 
2020. 

ii) recommends the use of pulse surveys in the future and recommends areas of focus for 
future pulse surveys. 

iii) notes the forthcoming all staff survey and reviews the areas of focus that the survey will 
cover. 

iv) receives a report following the forthcoming all staff survey on the analysis of results, action 
planning and organisation response. 

37

Agenda Item 7

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 Prior to 2017 South Kesteven District Council (SKDC) had not conducted an employee 

survey for a number of years.  In the past three years SKDC have carried out two all staff 

surveys.  These are large surveys that are led by the Organisational Development team 

and conducted by external providers.  

1.2 Covid19 has brought many challenges for SKDC, particularly around how our employees 

and the organisation work.  Office based staff are now working from home, most for the 

first time.  Leadership, communication and the culture of the organisation have never been 

more important, as our staff deal with the daily life under lockdown. 

1.3 A range of measures have been implemented to ensure that staff are engaged with whilst 

at home by direct line managers and Heads of Service and the organisation in general. 

This has been through a range of communication tools such as: 

• Regular updates and informative emails from The Leader of the Council and the Chief 
Executive 

• Wellbeing Wednesday emails 

• Fun Friday interactive communications from the Organisational Development team 

• Daily team check-ins with managers  

• Regular one-to-one and team meetings 

• Covid-19 risk assessments with teams to update working practices, both at home and 
when in the community. 

1.4 In order to ensure communication is a two way process the council’s Organisational 

Development team have designed, conducted, analysed and fed back internal pulse 

surveys.  A pulse survey is a short survey, generally carried out electronically and 

focussed on one specific topic.   

1.5 SKDC has carried two internal pulse surveys since lockdown began, the topics were;  

i) Keeping in Touch. 

ii) It’s okay to not be okay. 

The results of the two pulse surveys are contained within Appendix 1. 

1.6 A third all staff survey was due to take place in March 2020, however due to the onset of 

Covid-19 the survey was postponed.  The delayed survey is now planned to take place in 

October 2020. 

1.7 Through a procurement process a new supplier has been selected to carry out the survey 

supported by an internal project team. 

2 Pulse Survey Outcomes 

Keeping in Touch 

2.1 The first survey focused on Keeping in Touch and asked a number of questions designed 

to find out: 

• If our managers are communicating with their staff – and how often. 

• Whether teams are communicating with each other – and how often. 

38



 

 
 

• If teams across SKDC are interacting with each other as and when required. 

• What methods, tools, platforms and apps are being used by staff to communicate and 
stay connected. 

• Obtaining feedback on the way SKDC is communicating and if it is effective. 

• Information on how staff are feeling, so that HR can respond through Wellbeing 
Wednesday and Fun Friday. 

• Information relating to equipment, system access and ICT connections. 

2.2 The survey saw a positive response. There was a total of 317 responses from a possible 

376 staff who could respond to the online survey. The survey gave useful insight into 

individuals’ circumstances and feelings through a number of free-text questions. 

2.3 Key points from staff were that they are: 

• Really happy with the communications between themselves, line managers and teams 
along with the way managers where keeping them updated. 

• Appreciative of the regular/daily communications from the Chief Executive/The Leader. 

• Very positive around how SK are doing a great job with communications internally and 
externally. 

• Happy with the amount, variety of communications. 

• Aware of how important it is to keep the level of communication going throughout the 
pandemic. 

• Happy with the way they are being kept informed. 

• Receptive and appreciative of Wellbeing Wednesday and Fun Friday and felt they are 
a good way to receive helpful advice, hints and tips and to stay interactive with other 
staff and the organisation. 

2.4 Other comments from staff included: 

• Staff liked The Leaders video message and would like to see more video messages 
from the Senior Team 

• Staff would like clarity on whether they should be using Microsoft Teams or Skype. 

• Formal communication is great, need to develop more informal coffee catch ups etc. 

• Too many emails - not helpful. 

• Too busy working to read the communications. 

• Don't work Fridays so miss out on Fun Friday. 

• Can't engage in Wellbeing Wednesday/Fun Friday too busy working. 

• Missing the interaction of other staff and other teams. 

• Have to go out and about all day - too tired to read emails when return. 

• Need to use calendars/out of office more effectively - difficult to know who is in or out. 

2.5 The results of the survey were analysed and fed back to staff through a series of daily 

emails from The Leader and Chief Executive. 

 

 

39



 

 
 

2.6 You Said – We Did: 6 key areas  

You Said We Did 

You have regular 
contact with your 
manager and team but 
can’t always access the 
systems or equipment 
you need to do your job. 

 

Line managers carried out regular virtual team meetings to enable close 
links with colleagues and to pass on key messages and updates. 

 

Line managers organised regular one to ones with their staff to discuss 
work and wellbeing 

 

Line managers identified and supported isolated or vulnerable members 
of staff. 

 

Our IT service worked with line managers and their teams to ensure that 
individuals were provided with the equipment that they needed. 

 

Safe practices were introduced for access to equipment at work where 
required. 

 

You are happy with the 
way the Council was 
communicating and 
enjoyed the variety of 
communication.   

 

However, some of you 
feel you are unable to 
as you were too busy to 
read the 
communications. 

 

An increased focus on internal messages about different teams in the 
council. 

 

Daily communications from The Leader and Chief Executive gave key 
messages on work and the wider world (this later moved to more 
spaced out communications following feedback and a shift in the stage 
of our response to the pandemic). 

 

Wellbeing Wednesday emails tackled areas of concern raised by staff to 
provide advice and support in future editions. 

 

Fun Friday messages became more interactive and regularly 
encouraged staff to take time out and get involved. 

 

You said that you really 
miss the social 
interaction of the 
workplace having coffee 
and lunch with 
colleagues and a catch 
up. 

 

This has been harder to achieve and as an organisation we have 
encouraged joint team meetings and for staff to arrange coffee catch 
ups.   

 

This has been to encourage and enable a more organic approach rather 
than top down. 

 

The wellbeing team is looking at possible activities and interaction as 
social distancing rules change. 

 

40



 

 
 

You said the amount of 
emails being sent was 
increasing and some 
days felt relentless. 

All staff were encouraged to consider the best way of contacting each 
other including Skype and Teams calls to encourage increased 
interaction and to not copy in colleagues to emails unless it directly 
impacted them. 

 

 

You said that you had 
concerns with the work 
that you found difficult 
to do away from the 
office environment.   

Some said that they felt 
overwhelmed by 
workloads, timescales, 
hours of work and 
inability to take regular 
breaks and switch off at 
the end of the day. 

 

Staff were advised to talk to their line managers one to one if they had 
concerns, about workloads and were encouraged to come up with 
alternative ways of working that may be more applicable at home than 
copying what worked in the office. 

 

Managers carried out one to one’s with staff to encourage discussions 
about the way we work and identify issues relating to workload. 

. 

 

In general, you said that 
you liked working from 
home, felt more 
productive and that 
there were many 
benefits to home 
working.  You said that 
you hoped this would 
continue when 
“normality” returned. 

 

As part of the Covid-19 response Heads of Service conducted meetings 
with their teams to design a transformation of service plan as to how 
work in their areas could look like in the short, medium and long-term 
future.  This was fed back to the central project team to create an 
overall future way of working plan. 

 

 

It’s okay not to be okay 

2.7 Staff health and wellbeing is a priority for South Kesteven. The council undertook the 

second survey to evaluate how staff were feeling and how they were coping with the 

continuation of not being in the office and working from home.  The survey provides useful 

insight into how staff in the organisation are feeling.  There were 269 responses from a 

possible 376 staff who could respond to the online survey. 

2.8 The key findings of the survey were: 

• 83% of employees know where to go to get support with any mental health issues. 

• 80% of employees are aware of the Employee Assistance Programme. 

• 88% of employees did not feel that they needed to talk to a mental health first aider at 
this point. 

• 75% of employees have found Wellbeing Wednesday articles useful. 

41



 

 
 

 

2.9 Following the analysis of the results, which is shared in Appendix 1, an all staff email was 

distributed which detailed the findings and the Council’s response: 

• Further promotion of the Employee Assistance Programme, explaining what it does, 
and highlighting that it is there for all staff and their families. 

• A reminder of who the Mental Health First Aiders are, what their role is and how to 
contact them. 

• Encouragement of staff to contact the Wellbeing Team, or any member of the HR 
Team, if they felt unable to talk to their immediate Line Manager. 

• Line Mangers were reminded to ensure that they make regular contact with all of their 
staff, to make sure they are okay. 

• Staff were encouraged to take time out of the working day, to take a break, to go for a 
walk or to exercise and to read the communications sent by the Chief Executive, the 
Leader, Wellbeing Wednesday and Fun Friday. 

• A request for future topics to be included in Wellbeing support. The responses are 
being researched and incorporated in the schedule of information to be shared with 
staff through Wellbeing Wednesday activities. 

• Staff were asked if it would be beneficial to arrange Council co-ordinated activities and 
examples of what these activities could be. 

2.10 Staff were also asked if they would like to participate in or lead the activities.  Lots of ideas 

were shared and they have been fed into the wellbeing team who will co-ordinate and 

engage with staff. 

Pulse Surveys: Next steps 

2.11 It is proposed that the Organisational Development team continue to carry out pulse 

surveys to engage with staff on key topics. It is requested that the Employment Committee 

give guidance on what topics they believe to be applicable. 

2.12 The pulse surveys to date have shown that our Organisational Development staff have 

learnt from working with external experts in developing engagement through surveys. 

However, it is important that the team continue to receive feedback on how they can be 

improved. 

2.13 Pulse survey design and analysis can be time consuming and it is important that we do 

not jeopardise engagement with staff by over surveying them or by focussing on topics 

that are not of key interest or benefit to the employee or organisation. 

3 Annual Employee Surveys at SKDC 

3.1 SKDC has previously conducted an annual employee survey in the Autumn of both 2017 

and 2018, the third annual survey was due to commence in March 2020, this was 

postponed due to the Coronavirus and lockdown.  The re-arranged survey is due to take 

place in October 2020. 

3.2 Following a tender process, supported by the Council's Procurement Officer, an 

organisation called Protostar-UK were selected as the independent company to carry out 

the survey supported by an internal project team led by the Organisational Development 

section. Protostar-UK are specialists in developing employee engagement and delivering 

employee surveys to organisations in the private, voluntary and public sectors.   

42



 

 
 

3.3 A key aspect of feedback from members, trade unions and employees has been that they 

value the independence of a third party survey provider when providing feedback. It is 

important to note that the pulse surveys have been conducted by internal project teams 

using knowledge and experience from the all staff surveys and that employees have 

engaged with the surveys. 

3.4 The survey is proposed to be split into to the following areas of focus: 

• The employee's role and how they are line managed 

• Teamwork and how departments work together 

• Leadership 

• Working environment 

• Wellbeing 

• Innovation at the Council 

• Covid-19 response and support 

• Overall Engagement 

In the previous all staff survey’s there were 13 separate areas in the survey. Feedback 

from staff was that this was too many which is why the above consolidates the number of 

topics into a smaller number of key areas. 

3.5 The questions within these sections will allow the council to benchmark and report against 

the key areas identified for development by the Employment Committee previously as: 

• Return rate of the survey 

• Career Development 

• Leadership 

• Working Environment 

• Change Management 

• Feeling valued 

• Reward and Recognition 

• Cross Team Working 

• Consistency of management 

• Overall engagement / satisfaction 

3.6 Protostar-UK will be conducting focus groups with employees following the survey, to 

enable more in-depth analysis of key areas raised in the survey.  The tender includes the 

opportunity to carry out a second survey later in the year. 

3.7 Protostar-UK will provide analysis of the feedback to South Kesteven District Council.  

This will be shared with the Employment Committee, Senior Management Team and all 

staff at the council.  The analysis will be compared against previous results. 

3.8 An action plan will be created from the results which along with the corporate plan will help 

to inform the work plan of the Organisational Development team.  Directorates and 

individual departments will use the results to form individual action plans for making 

change in their areas. 

43



 

 
 

 

4 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

4.1 Data and actions from the pulse surveys have been shared with and reviewed by the 

Corporate Management Team. 

5 Next Steps – Communication and Implementation of the Decision 

5.1 The all employee survey will be conducted in October 2020 with analysis, focus groups, 

feedback and action planning taking place from the end of October to the end of the year. 

6 Financial Implications  

6.1 There are no financial comments arising from this report. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

7 Legal and Governance Implications  

7.1 There are no legal implications in this report 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 

8 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

8.1 The Organisation and Development function will continue to seek feedback on the surveys 

to ensure that the information that is requested and collected is both legitimately in line 

with protocols and stored securely. 

9 Risk and Mitigation 

9.1 With regards to the forthcoming all staff survey, a future lockdown would hamper attempts 

to engage with employees who do not have access to individual computers and work 

email accounts, for example employees at Street Scene.  Engagement with the relevant 

departments has begun about how to conduct the survey effectively.  This includes 

engaging with staff who are currently furloughed in the Art Centres. 

9.2 It is possible to over survey an organisations employees, with the result that take up rates 

drop, consideration needs to be given to a variety of options, particularly around Pulse 

Surveys and whether these should go to all staff or focus on either a targeted or random 

group of staff and how many should be conducted a year. 

10 Community Safety Implications  

10.1 N/a 

11 How will the recommendations support South Kesteven District 

Council’s declaration of a climate emergency? 

11.1 The SKDC Sustainability and Climate Change Officer has been consulted regarding a 

question in the all staff survey. 

11.2 A possible future pulse survey could be on the topic sustainability and climate change and 

could identify how staff view the council’s activities. This would allow for future 

benchmarking. 

12 Other Implications (where significant)  

12.1 N/a 

44



 

 
 

13 Appendices 

13.1 Appendix 1:  The results from the two internal pulse surveys 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not applicable 

Previously Considered by: Employment 
Committee 

Not applicable 

Final Decision date   23 September 2020 

 

45



This page is intentionally left blank



KEEPING IN 
TOUCH SURVEY

47

A
ppendix 1



Daily Weekly Not at all

100% 

75% 

50% 

25% 

0% 

Emails
31%

Skype
21%

Microsoft Teams
19%

How often do you communicate 
with your Line Manager?

74% 25% 1%

Daily Weekly Not at 
all

How often do you communicate 
with your team/colleagues?

85%

14%
1%

What do you use to stay connected 
with managers & colleagues?

Phone (calling or 
texting/WhatsApp)

29%

Do you read the daily comms 
from the Chief Executive & 

Leader? 

93%
Yes

5%

No

2%
No answer

Do you find it helpful & 
informative

88%
Yes

9%
No

3%
No answer48



Do you read Fun Friday?

73%

Yes No No answer

73%
Yes

25%
No

2%
No answer

Do you feel you can participate 
in Fun Friday?

54%
Yes

43%
No

3%
No answer

Do you manage to take regular 
breaks?

77% 18% 5%

Yes No No answer

Do you manage to switch off at 
the end of the working day?

23% 4%

Do you read Wellbeing 
Wednesday?

15% 2%83%

Yes No No answer

Do you find Wellbeing 
Wednesday helpful?

23% 3%74%

Yes No No answer

49



What, if anything, do you enjoy about working from home?

0% 5% 10% 15% 20%

Other 

Able to exercise more 

Easier to make calls 

More time with family/loved ones 

Peace & quiet 

More productive 

Save money 

Wear comfy clothes 

No office distractions 

Flexibility 

Less time travelling to & from the workplace 

4.5%

5.6%

5.7%

7.3%

8.5%

9.7%

10.3%

10.3%

10.5%

12%

15.6%

50



What, if anything, do you find challenging about working from home?

0% 5% 10% 15% 20% 25%

Getting distracted even more than being in the office 

Colleagues taking longer to respond 

Feeling out of sight, out of mind 

Feeling isolated 

Connectivity issues 

Relying on technology too heavily 

Feeling out the loop with what is going on across the business 

Feeling the need to prove productivity 

Other 

Feeling disconnected from colleagues 

Missing social interaction 

3.4%

5.1%

5.2%

6.2%

6.5%

6.9%

8.1%

9.1%

12.5%

12.9%

24%

51



MENTAL HEALTH 
SURVEY

Its Okay to not be Okay

52



Yes No No answer

100% 

75% 

50% 

25% 

0% 

0% 25% 50% 75% 100%

Yes 

No 

No answer 

How would you rate your 
mental health right now?

Do you feel you are able to 
approach your manager about 

your mental health?

Do you know where to go to get 
support for any mental health 

issues?

1%9% 3%
Poor Very 

poor
No 

answer

82%

17%
1%

83%

15%

3%

13% 30% 45%
Very 
good Good Okay

Are you aware of the Employee 
Assistance Programme (EAP)?

80%
Yes

17%
No

3%
No answer

53



Increased No change Decreased No answer

50% 

40% 

30% 

20% 

10% 

0% 

Has working from home increased or 
decreased your productivity?

10%

44%
39%

7%

20% 5%50%

Have you found Wellbeing 
Wednesday articles useful?

25%

Yes No No answerSometimes

Have you spoken to a mental 
health first-aider?

88%
No - I don’t 

need to 4%
No answer

4%
Yes

3% 2%
No – I would like to, 

but I don’t know 
what they do 

No – I would like to, 
but I don’t know 

who they are

Does the Council & your manager 
support you to balance work & caring 

responsibilities?

Yes
69.7%

Sometime
s

17.2%

No answer
7.1%

Sometimes 17%

Yes 69%

No answer 7%

No 6%

54



 

 

 

Employment Committee 
23 September 2020 

Report of: Councillor Kelham Cooke 

  The Leader of the Council 

         
  

 

Members Development Programme 

To provide Employment Committee with the draft Members Development Programme for 
information for 2020/2021.  

 

 

Report Author 

Samantha Selby, Cabinet, Member and Development Assistant 

 
 01476 406430 

  s.selby@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Administrative Administrative All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Debbie Roberts, Corporate Project Officer  9 September 2020 

Approved by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance 10 September 2020 

Signed off by: Councillor Kelham Cooke, The Leader of the Council 10 September 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

1. That Employment Committee approves the draft development programme for 
2020/21. 

 

55

Agenda Item 8

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 In year one of each Council four-year term councillors receive an induction programme, 

this is then followed up each year with an annual programme of training and events. 

1.2 The 2020/21 Development Programme has been delayed due to the COVID-19 pandemic.  

However, the programme has been in development with the aim to launch it during the 

Autumn of 2020. To do this, consideration has been given to different options on how to 

deliver the programme to members. This may be a combination of virtual, hybrid or face to 

face options, but is also dependent on any local lockdown measures that may be in place 

and therefore may be subject to change at short notice. 

1.3 There are specific regulatory training sessions that are required to take place as set out by 

the Council’s Constitution, these are Licensing Committee, Development Management 

Committee and Governance & Audit Committee. 

1.4 There is a budget of £10,000 for the Members Development Programme for this current 

financial year, and of this it is anticipated that £7,000 could be spent on external providers 

who are experts in their field to deliver specific elements of the programme.  However, 

consideration should be given where possible to use the Council’s own officers to deliver 

elements of the programme to help minimise the spend and to provide local knowledge 

and context to training.   

1.5 The programme also has flexibility, to accommodate any ad hoc training requests 

submitted by members to attend specific courses relevant to either their portfolio or within 

their area of interest in relation to committees throughout the year.  

1.6 Appendix 1 gives an outline of the draft proposed programme of training/support/events to 

be undertaken during the remaining months of 2020/21, as already stated this is subject to 

change. 

2 Consultation and Feedback Received, Including Overview and Scrutiny 

2.1 The development programme has been to CMT for feedback which has been incorporated 

into this draft version. 

3 Financial Implications  

3.1 The Members Development Programme has an approved budget of £10,000 for 2020/21 

and the draft proposed work programme is being developed within this approved budget 

allocation.   

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Interim Director of Finance 

4 Legal and Governance Implications  

4.1 The Members Development Programme includes the mandatory training that is required 

by the Council’s Constitution. The current programme provides an extensive range of 

training for councillors and includes refresher courses on important functions of the 

Council so that they can fulfil their roles as councillors effectively.   

Legal Implications reviewed by: Shahin Ismail, Director of Law and Governance  

 

 

 

56



 

 
 

5 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

5.1 There is training on equality and diversity and safeguarding included in the programme. 

This can only serve to enhance members’ understanding of equality and safeguarding 

implications.  

6 Risk and Mitigation 

6.1 There are risks associated to the regulatory training not taking place, as members will not 

have the right skills to make informed decisions. 

7 Appendices 

7.1 Appendix 1 – Members Development Programme 2020/21 

 

 

 

Report Timeline:  Date of Publication on Forward Plan (if 
required) 

Not required 

Previously Considered by: Employment 
Committee 

Not required 

Final Decision date   Not required 

 

57



This page is intentionally left blank



Members Development Programme 2020/21 
 

1 
 

Training module Objectives of training Who can attend? Internal/External 
trainers 

Planning Refresher Annual refresher training for Planning 
committee members to cover: 
What is planning? 
National Planning Policy Framework/ 
Localism and neighbourhood planning 
What needs planning permission? 
Planning Committee 
Decision Making 

Planning Committee members (13) 
must attend. 
 
Open to all councillors to gain an 
understanding of planning to help with 
potential questions within their wards.   
 
Substitutes for the committee must 
also attend. 

External 

Additional Planning training sessions: 

• Probity in Planning 

• New Permitted development rules 

• Trees on Development Sites 

• Conservation Areas & Listed 
Buildings 

• Local Plan Review Issues and 
Options 

• Design Guide SPD 

• Developer 
Contributions/Infrastructure Levy 

• Planning Reforms – Local Plans 

• Stamford North development 
brief/masterplan 

• Government proposals for First 
Homes 

• Government proposals for 
Affordable Housing 

• Use Classes Order changes 

Training on specific topics Committee members and substitutes Internal  

59

A
ppendix 1



Members Development Programme 2020/21 
 

2 
 

• Business and Planning Bill 
• Changes to PD 

• Permission in Principal changes 

Licensing Committee Refresher Annual refresher training for Licensing 
committee members to cover: 
Licensing Decision Making 
Licensing Act 2003 
Taxi Licensing 

Licensing Committee members (11) 
must attend. 
 
Open to all councillors. 

External 

Governance & Audit Committee 
Refresher 

Annual refresher training to cover: 
What is a Governance & Audit Committee? 
Role and Responsibilities of the Audit 
Committee 

Committee members (7) must attend. 
 
Open to all councillors. 

External 

Local Government Finance Annual refresher training covering:  
How councils receive their funding? 
How councils plan and manage their 
spending? 

Gov & Audit Committee and FEDCO 
OSC members (15) must attend. 
 
Open to all councillors. 
 

External 

Companies Committee  Refresher and update on companies law 
etc. 

Companies Committee members only 
plus substitutes. 

External/Internal 

Overview & Scrutiny  This introduction has been designed as a 
workshop to explore ways in which OSC’s 
can make difference, develop your skills, 
how the OSC works as a critical friend and 
much more. 

Chairs and vice chairs of OSC's. 
 
Open to all members 
 
Cabinet to be included. 

External 

Chairing Effective meetings This is a workshop that will reflect on their 
experiences, talk about effective meetings, 
meeting management and challenges you 
might face and much more. 

Chairs and vice chairs of all council 
meetings. 
 
Open to all members. 

External 

Procurement Training Cabinet session 
All councillor session/s 

All Members Internal 

Prevent This event is designed to inform members 
about a whole range of topics such as: 

All Members External 

60



Members Development Programme 2020/21 
 

3 
 

• What is PREVENT and what it should 
mean to you as a Councillor. 
• How to identify someone who may be 
involved in extremist behaviour. 
• Diversity Awareness session (including 
Community Cohesion). 

Equalities & Diversity Overview of the Council’s responsibilities 
under the Equalities Act 2010 and what it 
means for councillors. 

All Members Internal 

Safeguarding Introduction/overview of safeguarding. All Members Internal 

Modern.gov APP 
Part 1 – access to restricted papers 
Part 2 – Further upgrade due late autumn 

The training will provide a basic tools and 
knowledge, which will enable members to 
work their way around the Modern.gov App 
which is hosted on their council I.T. 
device.  Which will enable them to use the 
app to access agendas, minutes and the 
Council’s Constitution. 

All Members Internal 
 
Training sessions have 
already been taking 
place during 
August/September on 
accessing restricted 
papers. 

IT training 
 

Overview of: 
Outlook 
Word 
Excel 
Surface Go's in general 
Virtual meetings 

All Members Internal 

GDPR & Data Protection Overview of GDPR and the DPA18 
• Subject Access Requests 
• Data Breaches and Data Breach reporting 
• Data Privacy Impact Assessments 
• Roles and Responsibilities 
• Risk Management 
• Data Sharing 

All Members Internal 

e-Fraud  
This is being rolled out from w/c 21/9/20 

Online training  All Members External online  

61



Members Development Programme 2020/21 
 

4 
 

Code of Conduct   All Members Internal 

Access to information   All Members Internal 

Constitution/ Meeting rules of 
procedure 

interactive session All Members Internal 

Chairing hybrid meetings Overview of how to chair a hybrid meeting. All Members Internal 

Your role as a Cllr Predetermination 
Constitution 
role in meetings 
Distinction of roles (members vs offices) 
Sub conscious bias 
Communication 

All Members Internal 

OSC Specific Best practice site visits Visit other areas achieving good things on 
specific topics/services 

All Members  

Waste treatment plant site visit  All Members  

Developing effectively Member – 
officer working relationships 

 All Members Internal 

Member mentoring or buddying Councillors mentoring councillors. 
Member development using experienced 
members current or previous councillors. 

All Members Internal 

Member & Officer event Find out more information about the 
services SKDC carry out. 

All Members Internal 

 

62



Employment Committee Work Programme 2020-2021 

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting date Outcome sought 

Gender Pay Gap As the meeting was postponed 
as a result of the Coronavirus 
outbreak, these items will roll 
forward to the committee meeting 
on 23 September 2020 

18 March 2020 

To note the outcomes of the of 
the 2018/19 Gender Pay Gap 
Reporting and to ask the 
committee to review and provide 
feedback on the action plan for 
addressing the issues and 
improving gender equality within 
the Council 

Sickness absence statistics and 
analysis 

Monitoring report 

Apprenticeships at South 
Kesteven District Council 

To consider the Council’s 
approach in respect of 
apprenticeships, building 
apprenticeships into work force 
planning 

Human Resources and 
Organisational Development 
Update 

Items contained in this report 
were for noting to help inform the 
committee’s work programme. 
Actions on the Human 
Resources and Organisational 
Development Work Programme 
in future will be aligned to the 
corporate plan; this will help 
inform the Committee’s future 
work programme. 

 

    

Interim Staffing Arrangements Issue complete 

29 July 2020 

To appoint an Interim Assistant 
Director, Housing 

Corporate Restructure The Committee agreed the 
recommendations set out in the 
exempt report of the Chief 
Executive 

To consider the 
recommendations of the Chief 
Executive with regard to the 
organisational structure of South 
Kesteven District Council 

    

63

A
genda Item

 9



Employment Committee Work Programme 2020-2021 

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting date Outcome sought 

Corporate restructure To make recommendations to 
Council on 1 October 2020 

23 September 2020 

To receive an update from the 
Chief Executive on progress with 
the corporate restructure in 
advance of a report being 
presented to full Council on 1 
October 2020 

Gender Pay Gap Rolled forward from 18 March 
2020 

To note the outcomes of the of 
the 2018/19 Gender Pay Gap 
Reporting and to ask the 
committee to review and provide 
feedback on the action plan for 
addressing the issues and 
improving gender equality within 
the Council 

Apprenticeships update Rolled forward from 18 March 
2020 

To consider the Council’s 
approach in respect of 
apprenticeships, building 
apprenticeships into work force 
planning 

Managing attendance – sickness 
and absence statistics 

 Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

Results of the staff survey and 
the wellbeing Surveys 
 

Item requested by the Committee 
at its meeting on 29 July 2020 

To consider the results of the 
staff survey and wellbeing 
surveys and make any 
recommendations around their 
conclusions 

Member Development  To receive an update on plans 
and budget 

    

Leadership Performance – 
Director 
Targets/CPD/Competency 
Framework 

 

18 November 2020 

 

64



Employment Committee Work Programme 2020-2021 

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting date Outcome sought 

Managing attendance – sickness 
and absence statistics 

 Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

Apprentice Update  Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

HR Report  Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

    

Pay Policy Statement  

27 January 2021 

To consider the draft Pay Policy 
Statement and make 
recommendations to Council on 
1 March 2020 

Managing attendance – sickness 
and absence statistics 

 Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

Apprentice Update  Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

HR Report  Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

    

Gender Pay Gap  

10 March 2021 

To note the outcomes of the of 
the 2019/20 Gender Pay Gap 
Reporting and to ask the 
committee to review and provide 
feedback on the action plan for 
addressing the issues and 
improving gender equality within 
the Council 

65



Employment Committee Work Programme 2020-2021 

Item Current Issues/Status Meeting date Outcome sought 

Managing attendance – sickness 
and absence statistics 

 Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

Apprentice Update  Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

HR Report  Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

    

Managing attendance – sickness 
and absence statistics 

 

19 May 2021 

Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

Apprentice Update  Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

HR Report  Regular monitoring report (every 
3 months / every Employment 
Committee) 

 

66


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 29 July 2020
	4 Sickness Absence Statistics and Analysis
	Appendix to Sickness Absence Update

	5 Gender Pay Gap
	Appendix 2 - Gender Pay Gap Action Plan

	6 Apprenticeships at South Kesteven District Council
	7 Employee Surveys 2020/21
	Appendix 1 - Staff Survey update

	8 Members Development Programme
	Appendix 1 - Members Development Programme

	9 Work programme

